Great Swamp Watershed Association

Great Swamp

Watershed (w0, Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Association N ¥ Monday, March 16, 2020
= ,»‘o-':',:g;:;’f—" 8:00 a.m. - GSWA Headquarters

WATERKEEPER' &1 114N F
AFFILIATE

Agenda

Election of New Board Member(s): Clark Wagner
James Weichert (proposed by Nic Platt)

e Election of New Advisory Council Member — Fran Schultz
e Approval of Board Minutes from 1/13/2020 Meeting

e Finance Report — February Budget Performance

e Executive Director Report

e Development Report:
¢ Monthly Development Summary
e Grant Activity

e Update on Kent Acquisition (10 Acres in Chatham)

e Update on Ferber Property — Potential Office

¢ Advisory Council Dinner — Guest Speaker Allianz Global Investors
e Great Swamp Great Music Festival June 7t

¢ Gala Honoree Recommendation for 2020

e Capital Campaign Discussion

e 40" Anniversary 2021

e SWOT (strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats) Analysis

e Other Business

e Potential Board Meeting Dates — May 11 and June 8

e Adjourn
Upcomling Events
March 20 8 AM 24" Annual NJ Land Conservation Rally  Palace at Somerset Park, Somerset
March 15 1PM Sunday Series Hike at Rifle Camp Park Garrett Mountain, Woodland Park
March 27 7 PM Vernal Pool After Dark Exploration Hike ~ CMA, Harding Twp.
March 28 2 PMm Green Your Closet Livingston Public Library

March 31 5:30 PM  DIY: Build a Warbler Bird Box GSWA Headquarters, Morristown



Clark Wagner
Chief Investment Officer, Foresters Financial

Clark joined GSWA'’s Finance Committee in early 2017 and has been indispensable with his

sound and prudent guidance of our investment strategy and policies.

Clark has 30 years of experience in the fixed income markets and is Chief Investment Officer at
Foresters. He leads the U.S. investment, research and strategy and fund accounting teams, and
oversees management of more than $15 billion in assets. Clark previously worked at General
Electric Investment Corporation, American Express, and National Westminster Bank USA. Clark
is a member of the Pension Investment Association of Canada, Municipal Analysts Group of

New York, and Municipal Bond Buyers Conference where he served as past Chairman

Clark received a Masters degree in International Affairs from Columbia University in New York
and a Bachelor’s degree in History from Williams College in Massachusetts. He is actively
involved with the Great Swamp Watershed Association and Nantucket Conservation

Foundation.



James Weichert, Jr.
President, Weichert Realtors

James Weichert, Jr. serves as President of Weichert Realtors, one of the largest family-owned-
and-operated real estate companies in the nation. He also serves as co-president of the
Weichert Companies organization, a family of more than 15 real estate, financial services,

workforce mobility, and affiliated service businesses.

James began his career as a sales associate at the Jersey City/Exchange Place office of Weichert
Realtors and subsequently directed business development at Weichert New Homes. He then
was promoted to the critical role of regional vice president, overseeing the management and
sales operations of several longstanding Weichert sales offices. After that, he worked closely

with the chief financial officer to gain financial insight across the Weichert Companies.

Prior to joining Weichert, James graduated magna cum laude from Harvard University.



Frances Schultz, PG, LSRP
Senior Professional, GEl Consultants
Bloomfield, New Jersey

Fran is a Professional Geologist (PG) and New Jersey Licensed Site Remediation
Professional (LSRP) with over 25 years of experience managing projects and
project teams in site remediation and brownfield development/construction
projects throughout the New York metropolitan area and the Northeast. Her
projects include combined environmental/geotechnical projects, management of
state and federal superfund projects, environmental projects in a variety of
industries, and close coordination with public agencies. One of Fran’s highlights is
her work on the investigation and remediation of properties for inclusion into the
Great Falls National Historic Park.

Fran has a M.S. in Geology from the University of South Carolina and a B.A. in
Geology from Bryn Mawr College.



GSWA Board of Trustees Meeting

01.13.2020
Minutes
The meeting convened at 8:14 a.m.
Attending:
Debra Apruzzese Reed Auerbach Caitlin Barry Gerry-Jo Marilyn Dee
Cranmer
p P P P S
Anthony DellaPelle | Jordan Glatt Eric Inglis Matt Krauser Teresa Lane
P P A P T
Chris Obropta Alan Pfeil Kathy Pfeil Guy Piserchia Nicolas Platt
T P P T P
Lisa Stevens Dot Stillinger Kevin Sullivan Giorgios Vlamis
T p P P

* P= Present; A = Absent; T= Teleconference S= Sick

Staff: Sally Rubin, Wake Kirby, Sue Levine

Other: Clark Wagner, a member of the Finance Committee, was invited to make a presentation.

e Election of New Board Member — Marilyn Dee:

Motion to approve: Deb Apruzzese;
2": Gerry-Jo Cranmer;

Unanimously approved.

e Approval of Board Minutes from 11/22/19 Meeting:

Motion to approve: Yorgi Viamis;
2": Tony DellaPelle;

Unanimously approved.

e Election of Second Three-Year Board Terms — Chris Obropta; Kevin Sullivan; Yorgi

Vlamis:

Motion to approve: Alan Pfeil;
2"9: Debra Apruzzese;

Unanimously approved.

1|Board Minutes




Election of 2020 Officers — Nicolas Platt, Chairman; Guy Piserchia, Treasurer:
e Motion to approve: Matt Krauser;
e 2" Alan Pfeil;
e Unanimously approved.

Thank You to Trustees Rotating Off Board:

e  Michael Dee;
e Jay Delaney, Ir;
e (athy Lee;

e Anthony Sblendorio;
e Nadine Vitro.

Election of New 2020 Advisory Council Members — Michael Dee; Andrew Delaney; Jay
Delaney, Jr.; Jeffrey Grayzel; Cathy Lee; Nadine Vitro:

e Motion to approve: Nicolas Platt;

e 2" Alan Pfeil;

e Unanimously approved.

Discussion was held regarding electing Fran Schultz to the Advisory Council; her firm
submitted a proposal to be hired as a consultant for Rolling Knolls. Decision was made to
defer her election until after a decision is made on consultant.

Election of Chris Sanchez to the 2020 Advisory Council:
e Motion to approve: Anthony DellaPelle;
e 2" Alan Pfeil;
e Unanimously approved.

2|Board Minutes



¢ Renewal of Current Advisory Council Members for 2020:

e Kathy Abbott John Donofrio Jon Rafalowski

e Chris Allyn e Russ Furnari e Gerry Scully

e Astri Baillie e Claire Griffin Miller e Alden Siegel

e Len Berkowitz ¢ Pam Harding e Julia Somers

e Peter Birnbaum e Mary Horn e Frank Stillinger
e David Budd e Jane Kendall e Kit Stinson

e Brenda Curnin e Drew Maldonado e Alex Vitro

e Susan Deeks e John Neale e Jeff Webb

e Dr. William Diehl e Adam Psichos

[}

Motion to approve: Gerry-Jo Cranmer;
2": Jay Delaney, Jr.;
e Unanimously approved.

e Thank You to Non-reviewing Advisory Council Members - Phyllis Fast; Jay Graham III; Lois
Olmstead.

e Trustee Signature Forms for 2020 were distributed for signature — Annual Conflict of
Interest Disclosure and Code of Conduct and Ethics.

e Election of 2020 Committee Chairs:

e Finance Committee (same as Treasurer): Guy Piserchia

e Development Committee: (to be determined)
e Education & Outreach Committee: Debra Apruzzese

e Land Preservation & Advocacy: Dot Stillinger

e Land & Water Stewardship: Lisa Stevens

e Motion to approve: Nicolas Platt;
e 2" Anthony DellaPelle;
e Unanimously approved.

e Discussion ensued about the role of the Advisory Council and how to get them more
engaged. Council members might serve on a committee, or assist with the capital campaign.

e Nic Platt then spoke about our choice of a Gala honoree. A major figure in the
environmental movement would help our cause, or perhaps a Hollywood celebrity. Deb
Apruzzese endorsed companies with a strong environmental footprint. Tony DellaPelle
suggested a corporate honoree to help fill the seats. Gerry-Jo Cranmer suggested a
physician. The general consensus was to move away from politicians this year and move

3|Board Minutes



toward thought leaders tied to New Jersey - thought provoking speakers. Deb Apruzzese
then suggested Sir David King, the world’s foremost authority on “Climate Repair.” (She
subsequently emailed Wade a video of his presentation.)

Sue Levine then welcomed Clark Wagner who serves on the Finance Committee. Clark
presented a review of the investments comprising the endowment. (See PDF document
attached.) Clark Wagner has 30 years’ experience in the fixed income markets and is Chief
Investment Officer at Foresters™. He leads the U.S. investment, research and strategy, and
fund accounting teams and oversees management of more than $15 billion in assets. Clark
joined the Finance Committee in early 2017 and has been indispensable on the Finance
Committee with his sound and prudent guidance of our investment strategy and policies.

Vanguard Endowment as of 12/31/2019 was at $1,259,567 and the Invested Operational
funds at $147,904. Total account value is at $1,407,472. The following recommendations
were made and will be reviewed by the Finance Committee.

1. Re-Balance the Operational reserve — the approximately $40K in the MM should be
invested.

2. The Operational reserve is invested in Small Cap which is more
volatile. Recommendation to change to Mid-Cap which is a little less volatile.

3. Bonds are in an Intermediate Fund which is mostly Corporate bonds. Recommendation
is to replace with Core Bond Index Fund to include more treasury.

4. We should consider Environmental Social Governance (ESG) funds in a limited manner
since they do not have a big track record. Recommendation is to go with 5-10%. We can
review the options and go with either a very focused position like water infrastructure
funds or more general like climate sustainability.

Policies: The Donor Privacy Policy was reviewed and changes recommend to continue to
protect donor privacy and stay ahead of potential privacy regulations, such as recently
implemented in California.

Motion to approve revisions:_Reed Auerbach; 2"_Alan Pfeil; approved unanimously.

Results YTD: Actual results were reviewed —we continue to be ahead of budget and
tracking well for the first half of the fiscal year. Board Donations continue to be lackluster
versus budget. Unfortunately, we didn’t get the PSEG grant; however, we have been
advised that it was just an oversight as the relationship is strong. We also didn’t get
Watershed Institute this year which we believe is related to reduced funding from the
Dodge Foundation, however we will need to review further. This was offset by higher than
budgeted grant awards from Bauer and Tyler.

Versus last year revenue is off by $10k primarily due to Foundation grants.

4|Board Minutes



Sue Levine then presented a Monthly Development Summary and current Grant Activity.

Paterson SMART: Although we will begin to transition out of Paterson SMART facilitation,
we continue to find incredible new opportunities to increase green infrastructure there. We
met with PS30 and are reviewing a new education program and rain garden. We hope to
roll out another 40 Adopt a Catch Basin kits at the 6'" Ward Community Meeting on
February 20'". We are seeking funding to source the kits. Our work in Paterson will focus on
programming in the schools as opposed to the city which is difficult.

Sally then addressed the prospect of a capital campaign and the several consultants who
have been solicited. She passed around the proposal received from Jay Angeletti of The
Angeletti Group, LLC. She would like to hire another program staff person for which capital
campaign funds could be used. Reed Auerbach feels the endowment needs to be increased.
Other suggestions included the establishment of a scholarship for a worthy student, or
improvements to the Ferber Property if conveyed to the GSWA by PSE&G. PSE&G bought
the property and closed in December 2019. They plan to use it as their office space for four
(4) years. We are waiting to see if, indeed, they will commit to convey it to the GSWA.
There are great possibilities for the use of these facilities to which we could move our office
and create a center for education. Reed said that a building is the easiest thing to raise
money for in a capital campaign. Tony DellaPelle said that we should pick a consultant and
then figure out how we’re going to pay for it. We need to evaluate carefully the reason for
initiating a capital campaign. Tony DellaPelle, Reed Auerbach, Gerry-Jo Cranmer, Kevin
Sullivan and Sally Rubin will meet with Jay Angeletti when he is in New Jersey this Spring.

Sally reviewed polling the staff regarding their “blue sky” ambitions for the future. She
distributed a Wish List as well as a SWOT (Strengths/Weaknesses/Opportunities/Threats)
Analysis which is attached.

Sally updated the board on the status of the ten-acre Kent Property acquisition which is
subject to an environmental study.

Many GSWA events are coming up. Please review our calendar and attend!

The meeting adjourned at 10 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Wade Kirby
Director of Development

5|Board Minutes



ubepm e

020z ‘ST Adenuer




}oydew Asuow
%SG/SPU0q 94 G1/S3203S ©4,0S :uoiedo|e 3obie) a1elopoly -

OAI9S9Y |euonnelad -
suoljedo||e |euoijeuldajul pue ded ||ewS SpN[ouUl SHD01S -

spuoq
%Q0E/SY203s 94,0/ :uoiled0||e }obue] aaissalbbe Ajaielapol -

juswIMopuy =
uoijedoj|e 39b.e) JJo 094G SI UOIIRI0||Ee UBYM 3due|eqay -
Spunj Xapul 3s0D MO| Ul IS9AUT
94Nsodxa }9yJew peolq apiAoid 03 uoijedo||e Jasse 1abie) 195 -
YSl 9|geidsdde yiym udniad |e103 Waa3-buo| yoss .
Aydosojiyd jusuwsanuy =

M3IIAYINO



LY LOV'TS

%L9
S)201S

%0€
spuog

%€
19)dep Asuop

01]0jJ3}10d |10l YMSD



L9S'6SZ'T$

%0T
dep jjews

%6T
Jeuonjeusajur %TL }201S

%6¢
spuog apeJn
JUDWIISDAUT

judwmopusz vyMSDS



i %6¢
vo6'LYTS 3o)de Asuop

%t¢
00S d3S

% LE MD201S

%%V E
spuog apeJn
JUDWISaAUT

9AI9SIY |euoneld2do YMSD



uoizedojje 3abiel uo paseg .

spuog spel AUl [ AU de) |lews 00S dBS 0110J340d  uuniay |ejol

%S°'T¢E

%00

%05

%S 0T

%0°0T

%0°ST

%S T¢

%0°0¢

i *O\O*-NN O\OO\.U.N

LT %0°0€

%0°S¢E

SU.IN}ayYy jJuUdwWmopuz YMSD



uonedojje 3ab4e3 uo paseg

1 1e W Asuoy spuog sped AUl R 005 d48S 0110j310d  uunlay |ejoL

%0°0
b o o
%0°S
%0°0T

%0°ST

%1'Z
%S0T

*%T 6T e
%512

%0°S¢

%S 1€

%0°0¢€

0%0°SE

SU.IN}9Y IOAIDSIY Jeuoiyelado YMSOD



%90°0 IAIDSIY Jeuonyeladp

%90°0 juswimopusg
AE) BI=J/N

%TIT 0 Asuo|y |edapad pienbuep
apeln) "AU]

%0T"0 WJd] ajeipawdau] plenbuep
Xapufl »2031S

%TT 0 |euonneulalu] |e1o] pienbuep
%S0°0 Xapul ded |jlews pJenbuep
%100 X9pul 005 pienbuep
sosuadx3y pung

sasuadx3y



1PY10 Alem ayi yjem -3unnsodwod/3ulpAral ‘91sem 049z -sanyse|d aiow oN 2
1BY10 32U3I12S |eIUAWUOIIAUD ApNnis 0} spiy @8eanodud 0} punj diysie|oyds aieal) 6
1PY10 JuBWWWOI |eldueuly duosis/m Alojedidnied 1@ aAlsuodsal aiow siapes|/pieog 6
19410 S11Jauaq/m suonisod jjeis awiy [Ny 30N 6
12410 }Je1s 104 salie|es aAiladwod alow 6
uolleAlasald Suiddew a3eaud ‘sndoy ‘Sunadiel Ayuond ‘9niasaid 03 saijuadoud Ajiuapl pue alenjeay
puel w
i duidwes aJow op R ejep indu] ‘DM .
JO Juauodwod |BuOIEINPS pue dINIY/WS 49A0 ) e} -1aquiaw Jje1s DM 2wil ||n} Jaylouy
uoleanp3l }JJB1S UOIIBINPD JO IZIS BSEAIIU| 6
diyspiemais J21em pue Jamod/m (uoljined) sapis a|geAowal ‘100|} JO0u - YIAD 2Y3 18 24Nn1dNJ1S 8
A106310) uonsabbng sajon Jo #

(a)q1ssod sa10A jo # 1s2y31y ay3 si g) saisond doy jjeis [euonippy

44V1S INVHO0Ud TYNOILIAAV JYIH :Aliolid T# 4nO ‘@10A snowjueun Aq paaide Jjels YMSD

ISITHSIM

6T0C 4aquiada( - sisAjeuy LOMS 2 1sIT YSIM Heis YMSD




SN20j 3ulso

sy9eq||0J [eA1H]0d

Juswdo|aA3p |e1dJaWwwWo)

[lowJn} 21Wou0d3

PapUBIX3-I19AQ

sjealyyl

$924N0S3J |elduRUL} 940w o3ul dey 03 AJ|Iqy

91EJ0ApE 13113( pue 3|qISIA a1ow Sulag

uolsuedxy

J2ALI 113U Yyum Suildauuo)

saniunuoddo

punoJ3 ay3 uo syooq yanoua JoN

BaJe Ny B U] 10U ‘WEeaJISUMOP WO} Pale|os|

eaJe weaJls-piw ul 3jdoad 03 suolldauuo)

PAA|OAUI JOU pieO(q 3J13u]

SISsSauean

siouop/pJieoq/ieis

AI|IqIXal} 44eas

aAde-o04d a1 oM

sweusdoud jo AlisiaAIg

Mmou 1y811 uoissiw SuoJls B S| JUSWUOUIAUT

}Je1s a|qeaspajmou

syjy8uans

SISATVNY LOMS




Jubep niepd

020z ‘€T Atenuer




}odlew Asuow
%SG/SPUOQ %Gt /SX03S 04,0G :uolledo|e 19b.1e) 91eI9pPO|y -

9AI9SOY jeuoneladQ -
suoljedo||e |euoijeulaljul pue ded |jews apn|oul SY201S

Spuoq
%Q0E/SA203S 9,0/ :uolledo||e 19bie) anIssalbbe Ajjelapoly -

JjuswmMmopuy =
uoljedojje 1abJe] JJo 949G Sl UOIIRIO||e UBYM dUue|eqay -
Spun} Xapul 3S0D MO| Ul }SDAUT
94Nsodxa 18Jew peolq spiAoid 0] uoiedolje jasse 1abue] 19S5 -
YSI 3|geidsdoe yjm udniad |e1oy wlial-buo| ¥29s -
Aydosojiyd juswlsanuy =

M3IIAY3INO



LY LOYV'TS

%4L9
S)}J01S

%0€
spuog

%€
1dep Asuop

01]0j110d |01 VMSD



£L9S'6SC'T$

%0¢
de) |jews

%6T
|euonjeutajul % TLZ %501S

% 67¢
spuog ape.s
JUBWIISDAUT

jusawmopuy YMSOH



b %6¢
Y06 'LPTS uwv_._m“,_ Asuop

%v<c
00S dBS

%.LE %201S

%%VvE
spuog ape.n
JUSWIISIAUT

OAI9SOY Jeuonelado vYMSDH



uonesoje 3ob1ey uo paseg

spuog apels AUl 1.3U] ded jlews 00S dB8S 0110J10d  uimyay |e10)

%00

%09

%001

%0°'ST

%0°0¢

N *G\O*-NN %0°S?C

%0°0€

s -
%S T¢C
%1t LE

%5°1E

%0°SE

SU.IN}3Yy JuUdWMmopuz YMSH



uonesofe 3obuey uo paseg

194Ie ABUOW  SPUOg BpeID AU E 00S dBS OIl0J1H0d  uInSY |e30L
%0°0
RSB
Rk %0°S
Y%0°0T
%S0T
%0°ST
«%T 6T 20rac
%S 1T
%0°S¢
%0°0€

%S TE
%0°S€E

SU.IN]}3Y 9AI9S9Y Jeuonetdado vMSDH



/%900 9AI3S3Y |euonyetadQ

%90°0 juswmopusg
19

%TT°0 ASUO|y |eJopa4 pienbuep
apelo) ‘Auj

%0T°0 w9 ajelpawllaju] pienbuep
X9puJ Y2015

%TT°0 |euoijeuldaljur |e1o] paenbuep
%S00 Xopul de) ||lews pJenbuep
%7t%0°0 X9pUul 005 plenbuep
sosuadXx3y pung

sasuadx3



SNJ0j 3ulso

$)2eq]||0J [E2131]0d

1UBWdO|3A3P |eIDI3WWO)

[low.n} JIWOouU023

PapuaIXa-1anQ

sjealy]

$321n0saJ |edueuly aiow ojul dey 03 Ayjiqy

91e20ApE 49119 pue 3|qIsIA a1ow Suiag

uoisuedxy

J9AL 2unua yym Suiosuuo))

saiiunpuoddo

puno.d ay) uo sjooq ysSnouas 10N

B3JE (NY B Ul J0U ‘WealISumop WwoJj paje|os)

eaJe weaJls-piw ui 3jdoad 03 suodauuo)

PaA|oAUl 10U pieoq a411uj

sassauyea

siouop/pJieoq/yeis

Anqixsyy yeis

anloe-oud 31,9

sweusdoud jo Ajisianig

MoOU Y81 UoIssiw u0J3s e S| JUSWUOIIAUT

}jeis a|qeadpaimouy

syi8ua.is

SISATVYNY LOMS




1BY10 jlem ay) v:m\ﬂmc_pmoa_.co”.\mc__gum._ ‘a1sem 049z -sa13se|d aisow ON 8
1BY10 32U3IJs [ejuaWUOIIAUS Apnis 01 Spif 28e4n0dud 0} puny diysie|oyas ajeal) 6
12Y10 Juswiwwod |elpueuy uolys/m Aioledidinied 1 sAisuodsal aiow siapea|/pieog 6
SETTITg) s}jauaq/m suonisod Jye1s awiy [N} IO 6
12Y10 J4e1s Joj saliejes annadwod alow 6
uoljeAlasald duiddew a3ea4d ‘sndoy ‘Sunnadiel Ayuond ‘ansasaid oy saipuadoad Ajiuapi pue aienjen3
puel s
e Suijdwes aJow op % elep Indu] ‘DM ;
4O JudUOdWOd |BUOIIBINPD PUB JNIYMS JSA0 D))} -IAQUISW 44BIS DM SWIl [N} JaYlouy
uoneanp3y 4JB1S UoI1edNpPaI JO 3ZIS 3SE3IIU| 6
diyspiemals 131em pue samod/m (uoljjired) sapis ajgeAowal ‘J00j4 ‘400l - YIAID @Y1 1B 24n1oN1IS 8
A106310)H uonsabbng sa10n Jo

(e191ss0d 52104 Jo # 159y31Y Y3 sI 6) sa1I01d doy yess jeuonippy

34VL1S INVYO0Ud TYNOLLIAAVY FHIH :A110Ld T# 1nO ‘330A snownueun Aq paaise Jels yMsoO

LSITHSIM

6T0T 42qwad3a( - sisAjeuy LOMS '8 317 YSIM $e1S YMSD




| @beyd

512706

%68

L18'8ES

1S€'909 %b6 £50'79 95€'09 asuadx3 |ejo)
0052 %0 0 0 %0 0 0o IIoM - Bunse] serem
069'ct %y Sep'ze Hssze %SZ 229' 968 AnjenD serepm
000°Z1 %0LE 0522 oL IR %E26'8 v 8LL'E diyspemers
000°21 %00} 0 8L %001 0 1S 1594 2)sn iy
0Lzl %86 05.°8 £56'8 %LE 05 621 diyssaquiay
055°01 %E9 150'G zZ91' %0 18€ 0 Buie
000'8 %0 000'8 0 %0 0 0 dx3 juei uosjep pue apAH
008'12 %z ovL'el Beol'v %L0L 0r0'z ¥90'Z yoeexNQ pue uoyesnp3
005'9L %8L 16.'6 6v9°L %L £9.'L 10€'L asuadx3 juawdojanag
000'8S %Ll 000'8S 988t %00L 0 > sesuadx3 JuaA3 |enuuy
009°9} %9y 00t'y €10 %0 06 0 184310 | SOV / KoeooApy
282765 %66 8€6'Z6¢ 522'68¢ %86 viL'Ly 200'Ly 110} ||0skEg SANEASIUILIPY
£80'22L %GL 960'L8 B 0500 %89 $2G's 251' esuadx3 eAneRsIuILpPY
asuadxg
GZ6'L16 %zZ0L Prb'GLL ZL0'LEL %62 000'69 508'81 J40ud sS019
§26'L16 %Z0L C bbbSLL zZL0'keL %62 00059 508'81 - swoou| [gj0]
0000z %001 000'0Z 00002 0 SUOWEUOQ [ENPIAIPU| PAIOIDSIY
008'SZ %EZl 00t' L1 €1L0') %EL0'L 05 205 yoesANQ g uoneanpy - sweiboiy
00t'L %09} £6 Leb'L %St s 691 9S1W $8WOUI JBUIO
006'vY %6 0009 LS %0 000'9 0 JuaAZ 1sa4 oIsn iy
000°0€ %06 052°L 006'9 %EE | 0002 059 Bulalg a9)snu [enpiAlpu|
00Z' 81 %61 | 00S¥EL 004'09} %02 00025 005°0L siouoq Jofely [enpIApuy|
00v'sL %6 19€°LY 8L by %88 £eS'Y S66'E diysiequisy - [ENPIAIPU|
004'L02 %06 00Z'981 Elczi'zo1 %0 0 0 Hoddng uonepunoy
5z¢e's8 %18 p6G'1L9 B oss6r %8ZE 00€ v86 ajesodio)
002'002 %601 002'00Z Bicriiz %0 0 0 JueA3 |enuuy
000'0% %EZL 000°0% Hevi'sv %0 0 0 Meiq Jsjsuel] pung %y
awoou|
asuadx3gjewosu| Leuipio
1e6png [enuuy 196png J0 9, 106png QLA 0z9e4-6L.Inr  jebpngyo,  jebpng 0z 9e4
0zZ0zZ Ateniga4 siseg [enJooy
9duewiolisd wwm—uﬁm S$S07 R }ljoid 02/90/£0
uoneossy paysiajeps dwems jesis Wd StzZL



Z ebed

oLL'vlL

%002

0551~

180°0€ 1L 96£09Z %S8E - LY6

000'6€  o%gze 00012 56189 %0 0 0
0 %001 0 T %0 0 0
0 %001 0 0g %0 0 0
000°6€ %528 000'LZ 5zz'89 %0 0 0
000'0L %0 0 ‘ 0 %0 0 0
000°8 %0 0 0 %0 0 0

[ ETE:ReD) 0
00012 %0 000'1Z 0 %0 0 0

B .or'1s 0
06Z'vz- %9LL 180°601 L0Z'Z61 %G8E b~ Lv6 085' Lt~

1e6png |enuuy 1e6png jo o, 1ebpng alLA 0z 924 - 6. Inp 196png o ¢, 1ebpng 0Z 994

awoouj jaN
awoou| JaylQ JeN

esuadxg JayjQ |ejo]

ung pajouysay auljadid wibjg

asuadx3 Jayjo

awosu| Jay3Q |ejo)

pund A2es0Apy uasaaiq
pung ag %10y uesaaiq

paAladay spuapialg

|eS1aAal |BNI9OE- "0U| paLajeq

s)sanbag
3Wo2U| JBYl0
asuadx3g/awoou| JaYl0

awoouj AseulpiQ jeN

0z0z fueniqog

adouewousd j9bpng sso @ Jjoid
uonelsossy paysiajepy dwemg jeals)

siseg [enooy
02/90/€0

WNd S¥-2t



¢ abey

sasuadxa D '0G/1$ uoneypaooy - Buiwil Q)
aA Joud ayy Ul pa300q B %G5S IM DIGE LHVINS Uosialed - siebiny DG4 soise|dooly susAee 94 BlRS) 18zZyd ‘6
isenbag noqqeg 8
By L
Bunwij ‘9
Buwy - uBisep-a1 aysgem pue saseyoind apesBdn Jandwon) G
sjunowe pajabpnq Jano NG+ J8jAL pue YO L$= Joneg Aq oWOs Jasyo ale asay |
%01 $- eIMisu| paysiejepn Aq pasosdde 16 jupip os|e app
020z LD ulvadxa - podal ypny jo Buiwn o) anp - 45Z¢- Aqury N4 b4
"Auadold 18qia 4 ay) Uo 935 YIm A|9SO[0 HIOM 0} SNURUCD AN
‘panjosal siy} 186 o} Buppiom aie am Janemoy Josia Buissasoid e 0} anp %51$- 93Sd 196 1,upip em Ajpjeunuoyun ‘e
‘s2aol dIA St 's|es|y uebap gyz ‘panias sisanb gog
"Ad @Y} Ul papJodal SBM YdIym 18zl d wolj 3g$ sepnjoxe Bunumiapun
“1eak Joud pue 198png uey) Jamo| sem Buisiuenpy
abuajieyn uebsp 0GL'gL$ sepniu| C
186png Jano 364 L
0Z0zZ Aenigey siseg |ENJ2OY
aouewiolad J9bpng sso B Hjoid 0Z/90/£0

uoneId0Ssy paysiajep, dwemg jeals) Wd sv°ZL



Executive Director Report March 16, 2020

First of all, | want to thank the board for allowing me to work remotely for the month of February. Once
again, Mike and | spent the month on Sanibel Island in Florida and thoroughly enjoyed ourselves. |even
managed to get a lot of work done!

Rolling Knolls: As you know, we received a $50,000 three-year grant to hire a technical expert to assist
the CAG in understanding EPA documents and providing advice. | filed the first quarterly grant report on
February 15. As | mentioned, a small subcommittee and | interviewed three consultants and selected
GEl as our expert. | drafted and negotiated the contract with GEI and am reviewing the final version to
execute. We will be holding our next CAG meeting on March 30 to introduce the consultant to the CAG
and give a brief presentation and a Q&A.

Kent: | have been negotiating the contract of sale for this property. The contract terms have been
agreed to and | have signed the contract. | am waiting for an executed copy from the seller and we will
then conduct our Phase | environmental assessment.

Hopefully you all received your spring newsletter which | edited and reviewed in February.

Unfortunately... | posted an employment ad for Rick’s Director of Institutional Relations position. Rick
will be retiring at the end of April. So far, | have conducted three candidate interviews and I'm still
looking.

I attended a Newark Municipal Action Team (DIG). We hope to work with Newark on a canoeing/water
quality program on the Passaic in April.

| attended the Lower Passaic Superfund CAG meeting. They are discussing the timeline for dredging the
lower Passaic, the Natural Resources Damage analysis, and another Superfund site called Riverside in
Newark.

| held several donor meetings/lunches.

Rick and | have a meeting scheduled with PSEG to discuss the oversight of not receiving a grant and
what, if anything, we can do about it.

| also conducted annual staff reviews in January. This year, reviews focused on identifying three
attainable goals for 2020.

The Advisory Council dinner is scheduled for May 19. Kevin Sullivan secured a speaker to talk about
investing in water infrastructure. A big thank you to Kevin for this! This will be a particularly engaging
presentation and we will open the event to major donors as well as our board and advisory council. The
event will cost $60 per person for these additional guests.

| have been working on securing an honoree for the gala.

PSEG closed on the Ferber property in December for $3,250,000. | have had ongoing conversations with
the Refuge about our acquiring the house and barn when PSEG is done with their project. | remain
optimistic that this will happen and that we will get at least a verbal commitment from PSEG within the
next 12 months (hopefully sooner) which would enable us to conduct a capital campaign at least
partially around this initiative.



GSWA Water Quality Programs
Board Meeting Report

March 2020

Water Quality Reporting

All the 2019 water quality data has now been received in the office and the final results are being
incorporated into the year’s data set. The GSWA Water Quality Report Card for 2019 will be presented
at our April Breakfast Briefing (previously scheduled for March but moved due to availability of the
Composting presenter). 2019 marked the culmination of our first round of downstream expansion
sampling. While the 2019 Report Card will focus on the data collected only in 2019, with three years of
data from our new locations between Millington and Livingston, we will also be comparing the full three
year data set to gain a better understanding of the issues impacting this area of the Passaic River. This
report will be available later in 2020.

In March | will be presenting our Microplastic data and sampling protocols at the 2020 Watershed
Congress in PA.

Water Quality Monitoring
Chemistry Monitoring

Our first round of sampling for 2020 began on March 2"¢, the two remaining days of sampling were
postponed due to weather but are scheduled to take place March 9" and 10"". We have added four
new sites along the downstream reach of the Passaic River with our furthest site being located in Little
Falls requiring three days (instead of two) for each round of sampling. This will bring our total of
sampling sites up to nineteen per sampling event in 2020. Our chemistry sampling occurs quarterly to
help us to capture the seasonal changes along the river.

If anyone is interested in assisting with sampling, please let me know via email sandral@greatswamp.org

Visual Monitoring

Our spring assessment training will be held on April 4, 2020, please check our website for more details
and location.

If you are interested in volunteer monitoring, please contact me at sandral@greatswamp.org

Education
SWaMP -

The 2019 - 2020 school year has started strong with many returning schools as well as new schools to
the program. In the fall we worked with Watchung High school for the first time, leading a full day
program in Watchung Reservation.

As we head into spring we will be working with William Patterson University and four Patterson Schools.
The program will connect students with art as well as water quality issues. Students will participate in a
SWaMP program along Molly Ann Brook (a Passaic trib) followed by a tour of an ongoing art exhibit
titled Living Together: Nurturing Nature in the Built Environment, at William Patterson University. The



overall program goal is to help students make better connections to the environment in their area and
the importance of taking part in protecting it.

We will also be working with the Golda Och School in West Orange, this connection is also through the
art department of the school, but is allowing us to begin working with their science department for in-
class water quality programing and looking at a potential SWaMP outdoor field experience either this
spring or in the fall.

Microplastics -

Our primary round of microplastics sampling for 2019 is complete with 17 samples collected from
throughout the Passaic River region. Samples are being processed by Jersey City University using the
Fenton method to digest off the organic materials collected in the samples leaving only the in-organic
materials to sort through. The plastics will be sorted by size and basic type of plastic (film, chip, fiber,
ect). Some samples will then be further analyzed to determine the chemical makeup of the plastic
polymer. This will help to better understand what the primary source materials for the microplastics in
our water are. We expect the final results by the end of March.

We continue to utilize the results from our pilot study in 2018 to help support local efforts in passing
ordinances to reduce single use plastics by putting bans and restrictions on plastics bags in retail stores.
With the data from our 2019 study we will continue to push for communities to help reduce
dependence on single use plastics and keep them out of our streams.



Education and Outreach Report — March 6“‘ 2020

In school presentation in Paterson and Pub Quiz Winners show their prizes

Overview:

Our calendar is lighting up with programs added as we head into the spring and field season, and our
first field trip of the year will take place March 12™". To date we have over 23 days of field programing,
9 days of in-class programming, 15 events for the general public and 3 outreach events scheduled, with
more likely to be added over coming weeks. We are creating streamlined processes that let us stay
sane while we organize logistics for programs. Our education and outreach committee has been
reconvened under the chair of trustee Deb Apruzzese, with an updated goal, and short-term working
goals that enable the committee to support and enhance the work of the Education staff. A visit to the
office may also show a new face or too as our college Interns Alison Cosgrove (Wm Paterson) Chris
Coultas (Drew) and Nicky Vanech (Marist) help us in preparing, researching and writing to upgrade or
improve our website and other educational content. We have hikes, maker workshops and programs
galore in March- please join us at one so you can see how we translate our mission into education.

General Public Programming

Our mild winter meant few schedule changes to our outdoor &7
hikes’ series and several ‘future biologists' and their families
joined us at the Bluebird Parking Lot portion of the GSNWR
for a Nature Detectives hike mid Feb. As we trekked, kids
enhanced their observation skills seeking clues nature can
leave behind. Deer and racoon tracks, coyote scat and
feathers from where a bird may have become a meal for
another animal were amongst the highlights. Many kids left
feeling inspired to search for clues and learn who might be
living in their backyards!

Other highlights added new locations to our weekend hikes & ‘ i T el
series with a Hedden County Park Hike. Eight brave hikers explored the rocky, slopmg trails of Hedden Park as
they followed Jackson Brook en route to the small cascade known as Indian Falls. While more arduous than
some locations in Great Swamp, hikers enjoyed the crisp afternoon and saw some unique plant life such as rock




polypody ferns. Expanding our locations takes time, as we scout and prepare historical and cultural background
to share with attendees, but it strengthens and deepens our knowledge of the downstream watershed and
allows us to share that with a growing audience. New downstream locations upcoming include Essex
Environmental Ctr, Boonton library, Rifle Camp Park.

Another winter highlight was our beer and pizza pub quiz, held
late February. If you know the name of the book written in
response to the USDA’s 1957 aerial pesticide spraying campaign
to combat fire ant infestations, you too could have been a big
winner as that was the final question! Teams with names such
as the 3-Legged Frogs and Wise Owls tested their knowledge in
environmental and water related trivia for an array of prizes
including tickets to our Great Swamp, Great Music fest coming
up on June 7th. We provided beer, pizza and lots of great
questions that culminated in a fun and friendly competition
while promoting some of our mission specific objectives. Many i
new to GSWA attendees showed up and got a gentle introduction to the work of the organization. We’d love to
see a trustee team next year? (BTW Dr. Rachel Carson’s Silent Spring was the correct answer!)

Upcoming events:

Sunday Hike Series- Rifle Camp Park, Paterson. March 15 1-3pm Hike around the unusual geology of
Rifle Camp, part of the revolutionary war history, great views of Paterson and beyond.

Vernal Pool Frog Hike March 27*" 7-9pm. Our annual rite of spring! Come watch and listen to spring
peepers as they set up breeding at the CMA.

Maker Workshop- Warbler nest box build workshop 6-7:30pm. Come make your own warbler nesting
box ready for these migrants to use it this nesting season. No carpentry skills required!

Civic, Community and Outreach Events.

We will again participate in some outreach events to both upstream and downstream communities, including
Madison Earth day event, Bristol Myers Squibs Earth day volunteer event- where the goal will be to solicit new
volunteers to programs, Presentations to rotary clubs, Harding Community association groups, the Garden clubs
of New Jerseys conference and Paterson’s Earth day event- where every year we reach over 300 students in 6-
12" grade along with many members of the general public Our expanded school educational programing means
that these outreach events happen less frequently as we do not have staffing to attend them on weekends.

Education and Outreach Committee

As mentioned above, the role of the Education and Outreach (EO) committee has changed greatly over the last
few years as the organization has grown and hired more program staff, with the role of Trustees as hands on
volunteer/trustees having shifted to more strategic, less hands on. Originally, the EO committee staffed and
organized events and programs because there were no staff fulfilling these roles. More recently the committee
has given suggestion for programs but lacked an incisive role. A new meaningful role for the committee is
desirable, The role of the committee is to offer guidance to help improve efficiencies and develop practices that
enable Educational programs to become even more successful.




Draft Goal: To Engage and Empower the Educational mission of the organization to the community.
Short Term Working Goals:

1. To build understanding of breadth, depth, content and range of educational programs.

2. Help with developing and improving both quantitative and qualitative metrics for evaluation and impact
of our programs- a program scorecard of what we do, how we measure its impact and use it to drive
our future decision making in programming. We currently measure number of students served, but
what more effective metrics might we use to measure impact? l.e. How many students deepened their
way of thinking as an outcome of our programming. How can we measure that.

3. We can use the committee to help determine capacity for programs and staff, and to focus on how to meet
increased need.

K-12 School Programs:

As mentioned, we are getting ready to jump back into field programming and have many classroom visits lined
up. Over the last month alone we have been into schools in Dover, Paterson, Newark, Berkeley Heights, Harding
and Chatham! We are excited to begin discussions to also work with several new partner schools this Spring. PS
30 in Paterson is a potential location for installation of a rain garden along with the education programming
which surrounds that. We will hear in the upcoming months if we are the first-place winner of the National
Garden Club of America Founders Award, which will fund this work ($30,000). We already know we are at least a
top three finisher (510,000). Please see last two pages of this document for the fantastic write up of our
program in this nationally distributed journal. We are also looking to build relationships with the boys and Girls
Club of Paterson which attracts 500 students from Paterson schools every day to programming at their state-of-
the-art facility.

We have created forms which allow us to input information regarding programming while out in the field. This
allows real time tracking of the number of students served, the communities that we are working with and the
intensity of programming that we are conducting with those schools. It will also allow communications and
grant staff to access information on programs for reports and social media posts Below are some screen grabs
and background of the type of information we are collecting, and the ability this provides us to track and parse
the data of who we reach.

2020 GSWA Program Date & [@ a m
File Edit View Insert Format Dsta Tools Form Add-ons Help [astediwas 8 days ago
~

o~ & P T - § & 0 00123 ODefait(ai. - 0« B 7 gi ¢ B Sl co @@ TV~ 3I-
Tevestarp Below a link with
Timestars Cte Program Hame Type od Progiam sun Loesbon of Pragram ¥ of pheois Age Town Senec e o Esizting o Long wae the Progn Are insey 1 H f
T Ve e B s o 1010 o Gy ek "mey EDIT permission for
125208 113938 120020 MUK Cay Srogram  Publ Edu Evant( Schos 48, HE Othar, Pty vol Phgry schieol bisking 180 K12 Basaing rge e 2 Phoies T
132020 113645 12177020 Maker wirkabop Sich he Publc Edu Event ( Warn AP, HE SL it Sval S0 GSWA 12 AdUtF sy [ b 2 Prowa T ad COPY of the 2020
Rleie s RERTE VTIZ020 10 5 S wie” aullly I Senedl ( 1a-slaes | AP HE il AVel, Nicky \ Locise A Spancer schoel o5 M5 e L 2 Photes T
1252029 14 38 41 A1DT0I0 Gaoas Estats Gordens He Puble Eu Evant ( Hiks 1 AP Cross Extaie Ganbenn B4 19 AT amay [T Eming 2 b Pretc .
242020 13383 129020 Plargeoand Exporaser L in-Semol (fnciass | AP HE i &vol, Aison Louise A Spancer Schost o5 eLem [ Yoo 2 Photes T Program Sheet Th|s
42020 13 42 85 1A1020 PRI In-Class Waler Qus bn Schwel (lnclans | HE Ps 4 ELEM Patermen Emmatng 2 e Pk
22020 134413 13173020 Paygroand Exporsten L ih-Senwel | 18-cidet | AP inld/ol, Chis Coult Laue A Spancer Schoa 5 FLEM e aat N 1 Phoies T H H h
s i AT s Do i P En 10 e B e et ey PO e s im=r s not a live sheet
210702 1358 13 TWIOI0 Dwpthie @ CMA  Pubhe Edu Evemt(Hke [ 5P . 16 Amua aemty e oy 1 e Prc
2212020 11 1 88 VIO merisam mmiary g a7 Ia-Senoct ( 18.SME ) HE, ol AVel Harart 3 oHs [y Esmntng 2 M Pk h D 0
SR P e i o el = hemsand shows 202
22120 170883 2133020 51 Beneact wen Ourean (Meewg ) HE sart sHs - o 1 Ha Phk .
22520 2110 18 2232020 Pb auz Pl £ds Event | Worts HE. SL it Bval aSh etes 20 AT by [ Emang 2 Prows T p
2NN 12N M BATO A and Waier in-School | Ingaes | S Goua Och Acadamy 20 HS West Orange Hrw 2 rogrammlng

through 2/24

+ ® 20+ [B FormResponses 2 - B o




https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1fltRx2yij-
1T5saUuwLNIylkidpsqxJ9Kcji2MiQx670/edit?usp=sharing

This chart shows

o the type of simple
e e data analysis we
P can instantly
f;f” undertake while
®Hs using google forms
i to enter details
about our
programming. This
is based on only 6
weeks of 2020
programming data.
Town Served
15 responses

6

1(6.7%)

Basking ridge Harding Multiple MNewark Paterson Paterson West Orange



Type of Program

15 responses

Staff

15 responses

@ in-School ( In-class )

@ GI( Follow-up )

@ Gi(Lesson)

@ GI(Pianting )

@ Public Edu Event ( Hike )

@ Public Edu Event ( School )
@ Public Edu. Event ( Workshop )
@ Outdoor Learning Exp (GI)

nv

AP 9 (60%)
HE 9 (60%)
SL 3 (20%)
SR
In1 &Vl T (46 7%)
Other 1(67%)
Alison —1(6.7%)
Sue Kessel Lisa stevens 1(67%)
Nicky Vanech 1(67%)
Chris Coullis 1(67%)

Pingry volunteers

1(6.7%)
0 2 4 5 8 10

This allows us to break
down all our
educational
programming by type,
see how that
breakdown varies by
location or time of
year, give us accurate
numbers and see how
staff are allocated to
programming.



Program Name *

Your answe

Type of Program *

AP

HE

>

SR
Int.&Vol
Orher

Other:

OO -L1ELEE 3

Location of Program *

Your answees

2 of people *

Your answee:

Age”

A screen-shot of the
google forms which GSWA
staff members can access
from anywhere (including
on mobile devices while
out in field or at schools)
to enter program details
after completing a
program. By ensuring we
update this form in as
timely a way as possible
we reduce the backlog of
tracking program
information and
ultimately staff time spent
on processing all of the
programs we conduct over
the course of a year.






2020 Founders Fund

Bt g ’1!:' "! 14 f
£ f//’/%\ Wi/ ;|
i |
|
= 3 Y iy et <L
| e i m:_k_!_L"-ﬁ.
: _s_g;; T |48 _|#®S |
= RLSTVR e T o
s o scbbes - |0t
{ Swmtn [ Aptobe b | 1.8
2 e [ 1 Sagi
' [N, [P I s (1 m-;w
i
2 X & ‘5«':
£ o |7
= e Gty

Above: This student’s chart indicates which

plants they have personally selected The most
popular plants were ordered for installation In
this way students have ownership of the project
and understand that through good science their
voices can be heard

Top left: Students work together to select native
plants that meet moisture, sunhght, blooming
requirements, and wildlife benefit criteria Having
learned about water quality issues in Paterson,
they are now in control of determining a solution
through proper plant selection

Right: The Passaic River nses in the Great Swamp
and flows over the Paterson Falls, the second
tighest falls on the East Coast, and continues its
course 10 Newark Bay

44 The Bulletin  Winter 2020

Growing It Green in Paterson, NJ:
Public School Rain Garden Projec

“)aterson, New Jersey, with nearly 150,000
residents, is the second most densely
populated large city in the US. Almost 90
percent of the 25,000+ school students
receive free or reduced-price meals. In 2010,
more than 26 percent of the population lived
below the federal poverty level versus 10.4
percent statewide.
The city is one of 21 municipalities

in New Jersey that has a combined sewer
overflow system (CSOS). Wich just lighe
rainfall, Paterson’s CSOS, which combines
stormwater runoff in the same pipes as
untreated sewage, casily exceeds load capacity,
sending huge volumes of untreated sewage
directly into the Passaic River. The overflows
are truly devastating to the health and quality

of life in Paterson and areas downstream on
the Passaic.

Great Swamp Watershed Association
(GSWA) is currently the facilitator of
Paterson SMART (Stormwater Managemeni
and Resource Training), which focuses on
reducing negative stormwater impacts to
the city and the Passaic River through the
use of green infrastructure (GI) projects.
Public schools in Paterson are leading the
charge in stormwater management solution:
through the implementation of GI projects
like school rain gardens. GSWA and its
engineering partner, Rutgers University, hav
already successfully completed three rain
garden projects in Paterson. School resourct
reports state that the three rain garden



posed by. Garden Club of Madison, Zone IV
onded by: Garden Club of Morristown, Zone IV

ects completed in 2017-18 have had
ge impact on students’ understanding
ormwater management issues and
maintenance of the gardens has been
rporated into each school’s curriculum.
GSWA and Rurgers wish to expand
program with the development and
llation of two additional rain gardens
werson as several more schools have
sssed strong interest and commitment
e school board to be part of green
structure projects. They plan to start the
phase of the project in fall 2020 and
ate that more than 200 middle school
nts will be involved.

students in underserved, urban
nuniries such as Paterson do nor

normally have access to the unique and
impactful science-based programming

that GSWA provides. The educational
component of the rain garden project is a
three-step program providing both in-class
and in-the-schoolyard teaching sessions that
focus on the need, benefits, design, and plant
material selection for the rain gardens, as well
as actual planting sessions for the students.

It also offers an outdoor experiential

learning opportunity, which takes the
students to either GSWAs Conservation
Management Area in Harding, New Jersey,
or the Great Swamp Narional Wildlife
Refuge in New Vernon. These opportunities
provide students with an awareness and
understanding of the upstream-downstream

2020 Founders Fund

connections of the river and expose them 1o
wildlife habitats much different from whar
they experience in Paterson. Tr also allows
them to interact with professionals in the
environmental field, which broadens their
understanding of potential career pachs.
Students learn the importance of
protecting the environment and the value
of using green infrastructure projects such
as rain gardens to help build healthier,
more vibrant, and safer communities
for the benefit of their generation and
future generations. Studies have proved a
connection to nature positively impacts
physical, academic, social, and psychological
health.

Above: Initial construction of previous school rain
gardens, including depaving and excavation, has
been done in the summer when schools were
notin session The drainage and permeable
surfaces that will hold onto and slowly drain
water into the groundwater are installed. The
grade has been lowered and the sides sloped to
encourage water to gather during active rainfalls
Left: Students at Great Swamp Wildlfe Refuge
learn about how creatures living in the stream
can be indicators of good or poor water guality
and what human actions can be taken to impact
water quality All photos by Hazel England

The Bulletin - Winter 2010 45



Land Stewardship Board Report — March 6, 2020

: ki ik fe o SREAY
Corporate workday participants hard at work in conducting invasive removal at the CMA

Overview

We are actively planning our stewardship work for 2020, which will primarily entail managing the NRCS
EQUIP grant work, for which we were finally permitted back in late December, and focusing on
boardwalk construction to mitigate the effects of more water standing on the property. This will be
one result from the stream bank enhancement and vernal pool creation work which form the bulk of
the NRCS grant. Boardwalk construction will also harden our trail system against the wetter than
average conditions we have experienced over the last two years. As we work to conduct more
educational programming at the site, we must ensure that it can serve the field trip participant for the
March to November season over which programming now takes place.

We are excited that many institutions of higher learning continue to use the site for teaching and
research, including Drew, RVCC, and FDU. We will also host the entire staff of the Endangered species
unit of DEP for a winter botany identification and Vernal pool class and will be proud to show the 25
participants the restoration work that has occurred at the site. After a banner year for corporate
stewardship group in 2019, we are planning our workdays for the 2020 season, please see a request for
trustee introductions to new potential workgroups. We will not be able to undertake the ambitious
program of improvements at the site without the help of many volunteers. Progress continues to be
made toward acquisition of the 10-acre Kent parcel in Chatham, which is contiguous with the 3.5-acre
Hoag parcel already owned by GSWA. We are meshing our education and stewardship work this spring
with a focus on programs for the general public which help them to build bird boxes for installation at
their own properties or at the CMA. The goal is to reference these programs to CMA volunteers and
add volunteers from the program attendees!

Stewardship Committee

Lisa Stevens is the new chair of the land and Water Committee, which includes both Water Quality (Stream
Team) and Stewardship sub committees. At a recent meeting of the Stewardship committee, one focus was on
ways to broaden the involvement of volunteers who can help us to leverage larger corporate work groups and
get the projects completed we have on our work plan for the year. We determined we will write up some
specific “job descriptions” for Stewardship volunteers, so that prospective new recruits can understand what is
involved in volunteering. Since much of the work with corporate groups is more managing the work details and
troubleshooting logistics, and no heavy expertise is required, the feeling was that by detailing the roles more
explicitly, new volunteers might step forward! We will also advertise to Stream Team and create a post for our
social media urging volunteers to get involved. We also decided to create three vinyl banners for installation at



the entrance to the CMA which highlight our water quality work, ways to get involved, and the uses that the trail
are put to when not hosting stewardship days. These weatherproof signs will allow us to spread the word about
what we do to volunteers while they are at the site.

We agreed that the Stewardship committee meetings moving forward might be split into two parts, with the
more general and corporate workday or general and funding aspects covered at the start of the meeting, and
the more detailed, CMA task specific parts covered after a break, allowing for a range of interests to be catered
to on the committee!

Corporate and Community Involvement

As has been previously stated, it is imperative for the success of the stewardship at the site that new and diverse
volunteers are found to help undertake the aggressive plans for boardwalk construction and trail improvement
slated for this year. To date we have workdays confirmed with Madison High school, The Pingry School, J.P
Morgan Chase Bank, a possible date with Novartis and a week of work with Groundwork Elizabeth. Goldman
Sachs, who form the backbone of our volunteer with their CTW program, have recently announced that due to
Corona Virus contingency planning, their CTW season will begin in late June and carry on through December. We
are therefore in need of some new corporate prospects. We have updated our mail out documents for
interested groups and are happy to share these with Trustees who believe they may have new volunteer partner
prospects. Since many of these groups also come with funds that allow us to undertake much of the work at the
site, our plans may have to be scaled back for 2020 if we cannot secure the funding that accompanies Corporate
Groups.

Dates confirmed are:

5/7 Novartis

5/14 6/9 J.P Morgan Chase Bank

5/22 Madison HS

6/29-7/3 Groundwork Elizabeth

PLEASE, PLEASE!

If you know of any corporation, community, church, scout, or high school or other
potential group that might be interested in attending a half or full-day workday at the
Conservation Management Area, we could really use your help in facilitating a simple
introduction to the group, so that we might follow up and make arrangements. We
have a simple document which explains what is involved in having a workday at the site.
Please reach out to Hazel at hazele@greatswamp.org with any ideas.

i Stewardship

Attached are three maps that show what will be the primary focus of our stewardship this year. We prioritized
continuing to follow up the successful invasive species removal work we began in 2017, and which has resulted
in 9 acres of invasive control. We have recently been paid the $3,200 for completing this work from our NRCS
EQIP grant. These funds will allow us to carry out spot treatment for regrowth and begin the next phase of
invasive removal on the new 20-acre Lamorgese parcel.

The maps were created using our new GPS unit, which allows accurate mapping of the acreage completed. We
will continue to use the new unit to lay out new proposed trail routes around the new section of the property,
map the location of tree stands installed by the hunting club, and mark all the infrastructure at the site such as
benches, nesting boxes and other added components. Please check out the website for the newly updated trail
map made with the GPS unit funded by NJCF funds.



Great Swamp Watershed Association .- Gs;>me
gement Area - Horizon Trail Entr. i ily Lane, Morristown, NJ 07960

GSWA Trails

== Red Tral

s Green Trail
‘White Trail
Yellow Trail
Orange Trail

== Biue Tral

== Connscior Trail

== Boordwalks West
Sign post

\ w— Slreams

% <« 8B Wallands
Boundary

‘ Vemal Pool

F: Harding Land Trust
J (Sitvarbrook Trad)
Pink Trail

e Purpin Tral

Conservation Ma

White Footed Mouse

Black Bear,

N\

\

" Sweet Pepper Bush

L Stharmet har B
[T -
Eras Hibs Cxobm, Sl

-

Based on conditions around the

site, it is estimated that we need to install approximately 850" of new boardwalk to cover areas that will were
impassable during the spring program season, or will become much wetter after the drainage ditches installed
on the property in the 1930s to drain the wetlands are plugged as part of our NRCS grant. We estimated around
$13/boardwalk foot for this work, which means we have a need for funding for $11,050. We have around
$6,000 on hand from other grants for a portion of this work, but the funding from CTW Goldman Sachs funds at
even 50% of last year’s levels would allow us to complete this work.

We have prioritized the area that need to be addressed first. (see attached map showing trail system and
proposed additional boardwalk.



WE also intend to track the survivorship of the 1000 plants installed last year and use this to drive our needs for
additional plantings moving forward. WE hope that you will take a walk through the trails of the CMA this
spring to see all of the hard work that has been achieved there over the last couple of years.

LEGEND
GSWA Trails
— Red Trail
Orange Trail
—— Blue Trail
. Connector Trail
=== Boardwalks West
Sign post
Deer Exclosure
— Streams
Vernal Pool

S0 .ce Bua]
ﬂ'

T R s e 3 FrCA ke
loffice: 073.578.3E00"




* mim:.b Eﬁmanmq

0.221ac

0.716ac

0.163ac

0.140ac

0.189ac

0.405ac

CMA Trail Map for orientation, showing area with invasive removal, and native species

replanting, and area of work conducted in the fall.

1.18ac

0.117ac

1.74ac

1.03ac

0.667ac

0.632ac
7.2ac

0.405ac

YWisteria Remoya

0.117ac

Invasive Removal
; Invasive Remova

nn..:o.i




Wade’s Development Board Report
03.06.2020

Attended a Development Committee Meeting to discuss our fundraising events and a possible capital
campaign 01.13.2020

Sally and | met w. major donors Lawrence and Lynn Ross in Madison (acknowledgment) 01.17.2020
Submitted article for Across the Watershed newsletter 01.28.2020
Met with Sally for my performance review 01.28.2020

Emailed Lisa Alexander at Grow It Green Morristown re. her help w. contact for “Shopping Day” at Kings
Food Markets from which the GSWA will receive a % 02.03.2020

Lunch on 02.04.2020 w. Jordan Glatt to discuss enhancement of Summit contacts through guided hike in
the CMA — date will be Saturday 04.04.2020

Val and | interviewed four different vendors to shoot a website promotional video later this spring (can
also be used for development and education purposes)

Participated remotely in NJ Environmental Fundraisers’ Gathering 02.10.2020
Music Festival “Catchup” Meeting w. Val and Rick 02.11.2020

Assisted w. Millennial Cocktail Party 02.11.2020

Assisted w. “Cosmos and Tinis Valentines Tasting” Friendraiser 02.12.2020
Viewed “Reducing Plastic Pollution” Webinar 02.19.2020

Attended Scholarship Committee Meeting 02.24.2020

Attended Bernards Area Networking Group Meetings at the Grain House Restaurant on 01.16, 01.30, &
02.27.2020

Facilitated a connection for Hazel at St. Benedict’s Preparatory School in Newark to deliver our in-class
presentation to their high school students.

Attended Harding Township School Science Fair w. Adam on 03.04.2020 and followed-up w. faculty
member Dr. Michael Gervis re. our in-class presentation in May for their 7" Grade.

Participated in three job interviews for Rick’s replacement (Director of Institutional Relations)
Coded Comprehensive Constituent Summaries from 2012 - 2019 as:

Active Major Donors OR

Need to Cultivate OR

Terminate/Inactive (remove from list)

Acknowledged major donors via phone and letters for all gifts received.



Communications Board Report — Val Thorpe
March 2020

Events, Events, Events!

To date, we've held 12 successful events in 2020. Especially popular was our “Ditch the Plastic”
workshop where attendees made 3 reusable beeswax food storage covers and 3 reusable produce
shopping bags and left with step-by-step instructions. With more and more town-wide single-plastic bag
bans going into effect, this workshop was timely and an excellent opportunity for us to talk about single-
use plastic.

Visit https://www.greatswamp.org/events/ for more info and join us!

Our 3" Annual Great Swamp Great Music festival is heating up! Milestones: GREAT SWAMP

e Date: Sunday, June 7 (mark your calendar!)

e Location: Hartley Farms Polo Field, Morristown, NJ

e Many bands have reached out requesting to play this year — a sign
that our reputation precedes us. Three of the five bands are confirmed:
Not Enough Jeffs, The Holiday Ramblers (formerly The Gammon
Brothers), and The Big Fuss, plus our solo artist, Jeff Webb, who
opens, closes, and plays between bands.

e Food and merch vendors from the last two festivals are asking to return and we will add
more.

We need your help getting sponsors! Proper funding through personal and corporate sponsorships is
the only way we can provide the exceptional experience our festival attendees have come to expect.
Please consider asking businesses you frequent to support this event, our second largest fundraiser of
the year. You will each receive a sponsorship packet at the board meeting. If each of you finds just one
sponsor, we will be in great shape. If you are not comfortable soliciting sponsorships personally, Wade
would be more than happy to reach out to them on behalf of GSWA. Please email the name of the
business, a line or two about them/your relationship with them, and their contact information to Wade:
WKirby@GreatSwamp.org.

SOCIAL MEDIA
Facebook and Instagram have experienced great increases since January 2020. Kristina Necovska
continues to research and share excellent content generating this increased activity. The decrease of
followers on Twitter is linked to a behind-the-scene change made by Twitter that caused our account to
become inactive temporarily.
Facebook:
Page likes — 2933 (up 34)
Followers — 3099 (up 40)
Instagram: Followers — 1324 (up 66)
Twitter: Followers —2273 (down 14)




WEBSITE — AT-A-GLANCE

We are experiencing a significant increase in our website traffic. If we continue at our current trajectory,
we will realize a nearly 50% increase across the board by the end of 2020 over 2019. We are driving this
additional traffic to our website via our electronic eNews, event sharing, social media channels and
more.

Users = individuals who visit our website

Sessions = user interactions with our website - a single session can contain multiple page views,
events, social interactions, and ecommerce transactions.

Page views = total number of pages viewed on our website including repeated views of a single

page.

MTD Users | Sessions lfage

from website launch: views
Mar 9, 2020 58,500 | 78,600 134,400
Dec 31, 2019 53,100 (| 71,600 122,500
Dec 31, 2018 28,100 | 38,500 68,600

Apr 22*-Dec 2017

(Fwebsite launch) 9,500 | 13,400 25,600

Press - GSWA in the News

January 30, 2020 press release “Platt to chair Great Swamp Watershed Association for a third straight
year” — appeared in the NJ Hills Media papers (print and electronic versions.) Also appeared in
InsiderNJ.com

As always... please follow us, like us, and share us

Use the links below to join GSWA’s social media, then copy/paste the info below and share with your
families, friends, and colleagues:

Please support the Great Swamp Watershed Association (GSWA) by liking and following us on
social media!

Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/GreatSwamp/
Instagram: https://www.instagram.com/greatswampni/
Twitter: https://twitter.com/GSWA

Learn more about GSWA at: www.GreatSwamp.org




S 210N

€ 210N
9 910N
¥ 210N

€ 910N

Z 910N
T 310N

uoday azvE10.!.525_x,cmomHo\>._mEE:mlEmEn_o_gmn_/E.mNmunmf_oc_—:O.u_._vu_._uu/m—_umuymz_ikuv:_gfumu_u,§;_muo.;m.mmauﬁwu_iﬁiwsfu

‘asodund 314123ds e 10 Jouop 3y} Aq paieudisap suUOIINGLIIUOI aie SYIg pa1ou1say ‘g

Alogajed souoq Jofepy ayl Japun jou pue aJay Jeadde |im
‘@Jueisul 1o} ‘Y13 BeY $,J0UOP JoleW ¥ "3IINOS JO S53|PIeSal anusAal B[ED [|B S3PN|IU| S
'SYIF Juiydlew ajesodiod sapnpoul ‘¢

‘suoljeuop paie|as ejed pue uiaid aaisna) ‘syd solew sapnjaxg ‘syi8 Suiuieisns Ajyjuow
pue ‘syid |eLowaw ‘suorieuop ‘sieadde ‘s|lemaual ‘SUOITEUOP JaGLUIW MU @pN|3ul SU0INGLIIU0D diysiaquiaip

“Jaquiaw e patapisuod si pouad 33eJ3 Yluow 7 + SYluow ZT 15€| 3yl Ul PaJeuop Sey oym auoAuy ‘7
diysiaquiaiy ui papnjpul aam sy19 Jolepy ‘sieah snoiraad u) “BUIAl9 331snuL sapnjIx3 ‘dn pue gOSs SIS [ENPIAIPUL IV T
"198pNq [enuue oY) Jo 11ed Je[ngal e JouU S1 pUe pajdadxs 10U SEm 15anbag

15anbaq sapnjul,
L1598 1SL'eT * %Z8  STL'0E8 %8TT LLT'8LS 68'649 Y1012 9£0°19
@ = = . - - 10718 = 0
8TL'S8T 0 %68 00T'sve %60T 00z‘002 TI6'LTE 0 0
£56'9F 0 %I 006'trtr %0 0 062 0 0
: = o/u . o/u - 0ST'8T =
SLL'8ET 0 %00T 00z°002 %00T 00Z°00Z TL¥'66T 0 0
9L5°279C £28'L %EL ST0‘€6T %L8 Y6v LbZ LES'YTT 1€8°L £65'E
SLE'90T 0 %L8 00.'Ss8 %9TT 00Z'v9 SLT'YL 0 000'¢
00078 0 %9/ 00022t %9, 000°ZZT 000°€E6 0 0
855'CT £78°L %YE SZIZT %8E ¥65°0T 790t T€8L €65
e/u o/u %91 00L'9 %0ST 0oL 0S0'T 0 0
£7S'6S 0 %9 00599 %58 00005 0sz'ey 0 0
£12'88¢ 826'ST %L9 009262 %0ST €8S°0ET LEO'96T €8TET EvPLS
S09'%L 8767 %95 00v'ss %66 EERTY LBE'TY EE0T €64y
£E6'V8T 000°€T %08 002'£8T %Z8T 00528 006'6¥T 000'TT 005'ZS
S.9'8T 0 %BET 000°0€ %IL 0s2's 0SL°€ 0sT 0sT
51009 0z,
1endY 6T, uorybnosyy | (uer- Ajng)  (uer- Ang)
1en3dY 610Z uer 0Z0ZA4  Bunf-gr, [eopuer  [emay uer
aunr - g, Ainr o1 ssaibiosy EERIES 100D Jo 1U32134| QLAS|EOD  [BNIdY dLA
020Z ‘1€ Aenuer

Alewwns yuawdojanag Ajyiuop
uoneRossy paysialep duwems jealn

S310N

lelol

1sanbag
awoduy| - IsIA

BUETERTATT
|BAIISD4 J1SN|AY
yaiey uedap - ejen
ejeo
SUaA3

SUOIINISU| [e10)
P2a1314153Y suollepuna4
Pa13141534uU) SUCIIEpUNOY
paidiiisasun suonelodio)

‘159 diyspiemals suopesodior)

pa1a11say suonelodio)
suopnpsuy|

S[enpialpul [ejoL
diysiaquiapn
SYID Jolep
S2215N4 1
s|enpiaipuj



S 210N

£ 210N
9 310N
t 910N

€ 910N

¢ 910N
T 210N

1sanbaq sapnjut,

Hoday _:wEnc_@>un__xm_x.o~o~Nol._r_aEE:lewE___a_gmQ_,Eqmmwu.nm/v_uc,:.D.Ev_.kvu,u._umuuwz;m.souEE;tEoG__z,_muo._/Emoaaq.,uutn,ﬂwma{u

Ai0d31e2 Jouoq soley Byl J3pun Jou pue assy Jeadde Im
‘dJuelsul 1oy ‘Yid ejeg s Jouop Jofew Y ‘324N05 JO $S3[PILSII INUIARI B|ED ||B SIPNJIU] °§
'S8 Buiydlew ajesodiod sapnpul ‘p

‘asodind ayy1dads e Joy Jouop ayl Ag paieud|sap suonNgLIUOD 3 SYI8 paoIIsay ‘€
‘suonjeuop palejaJ ejed pue 3uiaid 8a1snJl 'sYI3 Jolew sapnjax3 syi8 Buiuieisns Ajyjuow

pue ‘syi3 |eLowsw ‘sucijeuop ‘sieadde ‘s|emaual ‘SUOIIRUOP JaqUIBW MBU [@pnaul suolnguIuod diysiaquiaiy

Jaquiaw e pasapisuod s| pouad adel3 Yjuow 7 + SYIUOW 7T 15| 9Y) Ul PRJBUOP SEY Oym auoAuy 7
“diysiaquia ul papnioul 31am syYI9 Joley ‘siead snoinaid uj ‘BuiAlg 9315n4] sapnjax3 dn pue 00SS SUId jenpialpul |1y ‘T
"1239pNg |eNUUE 3y3 0 Jied Jejndal e 10U S| pue paidadxa Jou SEm 1sanbag

LIS'9E8 £55°59 «| %v8  szL'oes %0TT 60T°LE9 [avs'g69 £€8°8S S0L6T
- - - - - - LOY'TS - 0
82L'S8T 0 %68 00T'SYZ %60T 00Z°002 TI6'LTZ 0 0
£56'9Y 0 %I 006'tY %0 0 062 0 0
- - o/u % B/u - 0ST'8T #

SLL8ET 0 %00T  00Z°00T %00T 002002 TL0'66T 0 0
9£5'79¢ 9££0T %EL ST0€62 %L8 €6L°LbT 0L6'YIT 00€ £8°T
S.t'90T 000°0T %L8 00£°s8 %9TT 00Z'%9 SLTvL 0 0
000v8 00§ %9 000721 %9L 000221 000°c6 0 000°T
85571 9€¢ %LE SZT'CT %IV £68°01 61y 00€ €8¢

efu o/u %91 00L'9 %0ST 00L 0S0T 0 0
£V5'65 0 %9 00599 %58 00005 0sz'zy 0 0
£12'882 128vS %EL 009262 %ETT 9TT'681 85Z'V1C ££58S 2T
S09vL 96T'E %9 00t'se %L6 99€'/t 856'St ££5Y 7L5'E
£E6'V8T 00505 %98 00Z'L8T %0ZT D0S‘VET 006'T9T 000ZS 00021
SL9'8T SZT'T %TZ 000°0€ %88 0SZ'L 00t'9 0002 0592

5|009 0z,
1endY 6T, 924 ybnoays | (qa4- Ainf) (924 - Ajng)
1eNY 6T0Z 924 020ZA4  Bunf-6T, jeongay  |enay gay
aunr - gt, Ajng 03 ssaubosy DNREEIRES [p09 Jo Ju32134| QLA S|EOD  [ENDY QLA
0202 ‘6T Aenigay

Alewwns yuawdojanag Ajyiuop
uol1eI0SSY paysialep dwems 1ealn

S910N

B30l

1sanbag
awoduyj - ISIA

SJUIA] |B10]
[eA11Sa4 21Sn A
yale uedap - ejen
elen
BUELE]

suonnsul jejol

PaidLlsay suolepunoS
pa12143534un SUCIIEPUNOS
paloisaaun suonesodio)
‘1s3y diyspiemals suoljelodio)
pa1ou1say suonesodio)
suoinsy|

S|enpiAlpuy] [eloL
diysiaquiapy
SHID Jofepy
$9215N4)
s|enpiaipu)



005'96$ 91
uolleanp3
13 SUBPJED UlRY UOSIDled - YOES
‘eduawWy Jo qn|J uapLeYIND J0'TS
"jJuess S||IH 195J2W0S qn|) uapies ‘Ajljenp
HOES 404 sisljeuly € JO U0 S HOTS JO WNWIUIW pPaInsse 1218M M)OTS “up4 SuaAeaT ‘uoneanpy
VMSD - AejA ul anp uois|dap JuesS eIawly Jo gnp) Usapien JOTS "up4 A3uau3isii4 ‘poddng
‘0Z-6T 1e9A |eIs1y 40} |9A3)] HSES 1e Sulpuny Sujsodoud SunesadQ |esausn y5zs ‘up4
aie am ‘0T/€0 uonlepuno4 H3Sd Yim |je) 30uUa4ajuo) - HISJ Agany "' ‘uoneanpl YSES - D3sd
sysanbay jueun aJ sajoN s/o |elol Suipuad suoneaddy| g1

e e e T e
' i MW

*3sa4un aesodio)

uonepunog Uowis "AM3 Wejjim ayl woly 000°tS |0S 000°T$ |elo} qns
uoddns pamaual siy 10} uowis 13134 000°1S [0S 000'TS uolepunog uowis "3 weljim| 2L
P31121|0S 9AeY ||B 3peA pue dIN ‘Ajjes ~ “1sayun uonepunoy| ||
00S$ 00S°Z$ |000°€S leol gns 0l
uollednp3 |ejuswuosiaug 00sS 00S‘ZS  |000‘es uoliepunod 3auayas uelin) 6
 pa1ouisay uonepunod| g
|B10} qns L
paidusay ajesodior| 9
. 0s 00S‘ZS |o0S‘LS |ej01 gng S
£0/20 papJeme ‘poddns 3uijesadQ |esauan 0s 00S‘2S  |00S‘LS uopesodio) 4svd| +
13
[4




